Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
City of Cleveland, Tennessee

For the Year Ended
June 30, 2011



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended June 30,2011

Prepared by:
Department of Finance



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter of Transmittal
GFOA Certificate of Achievement
City Officials

Organizational Chart

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors' Report
Management Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - School Fund
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds

Notes to Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information:
Schedule of Funding Progress - Retirement Plans
Schedule of Funding Progress - Postemployment Benefits

Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules:

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

viii

16
17

18
19

20

21
22

44
54

55
56

58

86
86

87



Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 91
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual:

State Street Aid Fund 95

Solid Waste Management Fund 96

School Federal Projects Fund 98

School Food Services Fund 99

Library Fund 100
Drug Enforcement Fund 101
Storm Water Management Fund 102
Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization Fund 104
Community Development Block Grant Fund 105
Department of Justice Asset Forfeiture Fund 107
Red Light Camera Fund 108
2009 Justice Assistance Grant ARRA 109
COPS Hiring Recovery Grant Fund 110
2009 Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grants 111
2010 Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grants 112
THDA Neighborhood Stabilization Program Fund 113
Project Safe Neighborhood Fund 114
Targeted Crime Reduction Project Fund 115
Debt Service Fund 116
Capital Improvement Program Fund 117
2007 General Improvement Bond Fund 119
Greenway Fund 120
Fletcher Park Trust Fund 121
Sales Tax Capital Projects Fund , 122
2009 QSCB Fund 123
2009 Bradley County Build America Bonds 124
2010 Local Government Energy Loan 125
ARRA Grants Fund 126
Tennessee Housing Development Agency Home Grant Fund 127
Meiler Estate Animal Shelter Trust Fund 128

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Assets- Budget and Actual - Fleet Management Fund 129

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds:

Comparative Schedule By Source 131
Schedule by Function and Activity 132
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity 134
STATISTICAL SECTION Schedule
Net Assets by Component - Last Ten Fiscal Years 1 136
Changes in Net Assets - Last Ten Fiscal Years 2 138

Program Revenues by Function/Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years 3 140



Fund Balances, Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years 4 142
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years 5 144
Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years 6 146

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Real Taxable Property -

Last Ten Fiscal Years 7 147
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 8 149
Principal Property Taxpayers- Current Year and Nine Years Ago 9 150
Property Tax Levies and Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years 10 151
Local Taxable Sales by Category - Last Ten Calendar Years 11 152
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates - Last Ten Fiscal Years 12 154
Local Sales Tax Revenue by Industry - Fiscal Years 2001 and 2010 13 155
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten Fiscal Years 14 157
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding - Last Ten Fiscal Years 15 159
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 16 160
Legal Debt Margin Information - Last Ten Fiscal Years 17 161

Revenue Bond Coverage Water and Wastewater Bonds -

Last Ten Fiscal Years 18 163
Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last Ten Calendar Years 19 164
Principal Employers - Current Year and Nine Years Ago 20 166

Full-Time-Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program -

Last Ten Fiscal Years 21 168
Operating Indicators by Function/Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years 22 169
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years 23 173
OTHER INFORMATION Table
Insurance in Force - All Fund Types
Excluding Cleveland Utilities 1 174

Insurance in Force - Cleveland Utilities 2 175



Changes in Property Taxes Receivable 3 176

Changes in General Obligation Bonds Payable 4 177
Changes in Revenue Bonds Payable 5 178
Changes in Notes Payable 6 179
Uncollected Delinquent Property Taxes Filed 7 180
Bond Principal and Interest Requirements by 8 181

Fiscal Year for General Obligation Bonds

Note Principal and Interest Requirements by 9 183
Fiscal Year Excluding Cleveland Utilities

Bond Principal and Interest Requirements by Fiscal 10 185
Year for Cleveland Utilities

Note Principal and Interest Requirements by Fiscal 11 187
Year for Cleveland Utilities

Investments 12 188

Transfers 13 189

Schedule of Unaccounted for Water 14 190

Salaries and Surety Bonds of Principal Officials 15 191
SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

Schedule of Federal and State Financial Assistance Activity 192

Schedule of Non-Cash Assistance 196

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance and Internal Control
over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 197

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal Control over

Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 199
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 201
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 203

Corrective Action Plan 204



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



City of Cleueland

CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE

Michael L. Keith, CPA
Director of Finance/City Clerk

Cleveland Municipal Building
190 Church Street, N.E.

mkeith @cityofclevelandtn.com P.O. Box 1519
Fax: (423) 559-3302 Cleveland, Tennessee 37364-1519
(423) 472-4551

December 16, 2011

Honorable Mayor,
Members of the City Council and
Citizens of the City of Cleveland, Tennessee

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months
of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audit in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm licensed certified public
accountant. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual
financial report of the City of Cleveland for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City
of Cleveland.  Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide
a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City of
Cleveland has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed
both to protect the city’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the City of Cleveland’s financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their
benefits, the City of Cleveland’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
-statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all
material respects.

The City of Cleveland’s financial statements have been audited by Arnett, Kirksey,
Kimsey, Sullivan and Lay, PLLC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The
goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the City of Cleveland, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, are free of
material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing



the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the City of Cleveland’s financial statements, for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent
auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Cleveland was part of a
broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal
grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements,
but also on the City of Cleveland’s internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving
the administration of federal awards. These reports are located in the Single Audit
Section at the end of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A. and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Cleveland’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

PROFILE OF THE CITY OF CLEVELAND

The City of Cleveland, incorporated in 1903, is located in the southeastern corner of the
state. Cleveland has a highly diversified economy, being the fifth largest industrial city
in the state with twelve Fortune 500 manufacturers, and being a regional shopping
destination and health care provider for surrounding counties. Its proximity to the
mountains, whitewater rafting, and Cherokee Indian heritage is increasing the tourism
component of the economy.

The City of Cleveland operates under the council-manager form of government,

established by an amended Private Act Charter in 1993, following a referendum. Five

council-members are elected from districts, and the mayor and two council members are

elected at large. All elections are non-partisan, and the terms are for four years, with half
the members elected every two years. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested
in the council. The council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances,

adopting the budget, appointing committees, hiring the city manager, and appointing the

city attorney and city judge. The city manager is responsible for carrying out the policies

and ordinances of the city council, for overseeing the city’s day-to-day operations, and

for appointing the heads of the various departments.

The city provides a full range of services which include police and fire protection;
sanitation services; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and
infrastructure; recreational activities and cultural events. In addition to general
government activities, the governing body exercises, or has the authority to exercise,
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oversight of the Utilities Department and the Cleveland City Schools; therefore, these
activities are included in the financial statements. However, the Cleveland Housing
Authority, the Bradley/Cleveland Industrial Development Board and the Health and
Educational Facilities Board have not met the established criteria for inclusion; and,
accordingly, are excluded from this report.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Cleveland’s financial planning
and control. All departments of the city are required to submit capital requests to the city
manager by February 1% and operating budget requests to the finance director by March
1* each year. The city manager and finance director make revenue estimates for the
upcoming fiscal year. A budget work session is held in late March or early April, at
which time department heads and the city manager make presentations to the council.
- The finance director and city manager provide projections for the current fiscal year’s
~ budget and the coming year’s proposed operating budget for council review. In addition,
the city manager presents the council with her recommendation for a six-year capital
improvements program based upon the fall planning session held by the city council, city
manager, and department heads. After much review and debate among the council, the
budget is revised to include any recommendations of the city council. A proposed budget
is submitted to the city council by the second council meeting in May. The council is
required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget and
tax rate by June 30" each year, which is the close of the city’s fiscal year. The
appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department
(e.g., police). Departmental budget officers, with approval of the department head and
finance director, may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of
appropriations between funds, however, require approval of the city council. Budget to
- actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for
which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this
comparison is presented on pages 22-43 as part of the basic financial statements for the
governmental funds. The school fund comparison is presented on pages 44-53. For
nonmajor governmental funds, with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison is
presented in the governmental fund subsection of this report, which starts on page 87.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it
is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the
City of Cleveland operates.

Local economy. The local economy began to show signs of sustaining economic growth
for the last half of the current year, after two years of decline. The decline was not as
drastic as many other locations in the state or nation because of the diverse economy and
the proximity to several large industrial construction projects. These projects are as
follows: '

iii



e Whirlpool Corporation is the largest employer in the City with approximately
1,400 employees and one of the largest taxpayers. The company began
construction in November 2010 on a new 1.4 million square foot facility. This
will allow all of the current employees, plus an additional 130 positions, to be in

* one location within the City. Production will begin in early 2012 at the new plant.

e Volkswagen has completed its commitment to invest up to $1 billion for a
manufacturing plant in nearby Hamilton County. The plant is located less than
twenty minutes from much of Cleveland and has begun shipping Passats around
‘the country. Cleveland, and the surrounding area is benefitting from the
approximately 2,000 jobs created at the facility, as well as the estimated
additional 9,500 jobs created by suppliers to the plant.

e Wacker Chemie AF, a Munich, Germany-based company, is progressing with its
construction of a new facility in Bradley County with an estimated capital
investment of $1.5 billion and initial employment of approximately 750 highly
skilled workers. The new facility will produce hyper pure polycrystalline silicon,
a key component in photovoltaic for solar energy and semiconductors for the
electronics industry. '

e Amazon has also completed a distribution center in Bradley County which opened
in time to ship items for the 2011 holiday season. Amazon will employ
approximately 250 full time employees, with a peak employment of
approximately 600. ‘

Long-term financial planning. On March 10, 2009 the voters approved an increase in
the local option sales tax rate from 2.25% to 2.75%, the highest rate allowed by state law.
The new rate, which became effective on May 1, provided that all funds received from
the increase in the rate would be used for capital needs of the city and the city schools.
This additional revenue has provided much needed funds to purchase equipment and
provide paving in the city. It has also funded improvements to the schools including
repaying debt incurred for constructing a science wing at Cleveland High School.

The City is working with the Industrial Development Board, Bradley County, and
Cleveland Utilities to develop a new industrial park. Potential funding would require
$2,000,000 each from the City, County and Cleveland Utilities to purchase the land
necessary for the park. The City will also be required to provide $2,000,000 toward the
construction of two local interstate connectors in southern area of the City near the
industrial park property. The City believes the development of this area will produce
additional tax revenues and jobs.

Financial Policies.
Revenue policies. The City will budget revenues conservatively so that the chance of a

revenue shortage during the yéar is remote. This also will help finance contingencies and
Budget amendments that were unforeseen when the Budget was first adopted. The City
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will review annually all fees and charges to assure that they maintain their inflation-
adjusted purchasing power. Since different revenue sources impact classes of taxpayers
differently, the City Council recognizes that the only way to minimize these different
- impacts is to have a diversified revenue system. These impacts will be considered in
making any needed adjustments to the various sources of revenue. The City will make
every effort not to become too dependent on one source of revenue in order to minimize
serious fluctuations in any year. The City will consider market rates and rates of
comparable cities in the region when changing tax rates, fees, and charges. The City will
make every effort to maintain its favorable comparative position with other Tennessee
cities in this regard, which has contributed to our economic development success.

Reserve fund policy. It is the policy of the City Council to maintain a reserve in the
various operating funds for the City. The reserves are to be maintained at a level that is
sufficient for temporary financing of unforeseen emergency needs and to continue
orderly operations during the months of July through December when cash inflows are
less because the majority of property tax collections occur in January and February. The
percentage is calculated by taking fund balance or working capital as a percentage of
expenditures or operating expenses and transfers to other funds. These reserves are
reviewed annually by the City Manager and finance director.

- Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Cleveland for its
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.
This was the twenty-third consecutive year that the city has received this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the city published an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement program’s requirements
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the city also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
- for its annual budget document for the last twelve fiscal years, beginning in Fiscal Year
1999. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the city’s
budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories, including as a policy
document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.

The preparation of this CAFR on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated
service of the employees of the finance department. I would like to express my
appreciation to all staff members who have assisted and contributed to this report, in
addition to the City’s independent certified public accountants. Credit must also be given
to the mayor and city council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest
standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Cleveland’s finances.



Councilman Bill Robertson passed away in April of 2011. “Hey big guy” was a common
greeting from him prior to most City Council meetings. “Coach” or “Chief’ as he was
called by many, will be greatly missed. He was a positive influence on many of the
young people in our community and was a great public servant.

Respectfully submitted,

Moot Y LA

Michael L. Keith, CPA
Director of Finance/City Clerk

%@M. Caatey

Janice S. Casteel
City Manager
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Council
of the City of Cleveland
Cleveland, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cleveland, Tennessee,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Cleveland,
Tennessee's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on

our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Cleveland, Tennessee, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the
General Fund and School Fund, for the year ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

As described in Note 19, the City of Cleveland, Tennessee, has adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, which became effective for the year ended June 30, 2011.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report, dated December 16, 2011,
on our consideration of the City of Cleveland's internal control over financial reporting and our test of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.

The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting

and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 15 and the Schedule of Funding Progress on page 86 be presented

to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted primarily of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Cleveland's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of federal and

state financial assistance activity is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit

Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. In addition, the introductory
section, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, the statistical section
and the other information section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required

part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of federal and state financial

assistance activity, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules,

and the other information section are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not be subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on it.

ARNETT, KIRKSEY, KIMSEY, SULLIVAN & LAY, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants

December 16, 2011



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Cleveland, we offer readers of the city’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Cleveland for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found in
pages i—vi of this report.

Financial Highlights

=  The assets of the City of Cleveland exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2011 by $227,275,624 (net
assets). Of this amount, $25,615,884 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the city’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

» Net assets (defined as the difference in revenues and expenses) increased by $18,102,003, an
increase of 8.9% over FY2010. The City of Cleveland’s changes in net assets is detailed in the chart
on page seven of this report. Total revenues increased $25,248,924 which primarily included an
additional $11,339,821 in charges for services, $4,746,067 in operating grants and contributions, and
an additional $8,022,603 in capital grants and contributions. Expenses increased $12,380,754 over
last fiscal year with the largest increases consisting of $8,862,785 in the electric division of
Cleveland Utilities for the purchase of power and $3,412,090 for education, and the largest decrease
of $898,615 in general government.

» The city’s property tax rate remained the same at $1.4904 per hundred dollars of assessment.

* The city’s residential sanitation fee remained at $6.95 per month and the Solid Waste Management
Fund did not require a subsidy from the General Fund for residential service.

= The city and county entered the first year of a new three-year fire contract in which the county
agreed to pay for fire suppression service for the fringe area. The contract ends June 30, 2013 and is
not expected to be renewed.

= As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Cleveland’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $21,060,855.

= At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $10,152,078,
or 38% of total general fund expenditures. Expenditures do not include transfers to other funds,
which totaled $11,095,943 in the city’s general fund.

* Long-term debt increased approximately $4,144,000. Revenue bonds for approximately $8,900,000
were issued for the water and electric divisions of Cleveland Utilities

» The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54 which
requires new classifications of fund balances. This is described in more detail in Note 19 of the
financial statements.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction of the City of Cleveland’s basic
financial statements. The City of Cleveland’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.



Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Cleveland’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Cleveland’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Cleveland is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Cleveland that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Cleveland include general
government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, economic development, and culture and
recreation. The business-type activities of the City of Cleveland include Cleveland Utilities Electric and
Water Systems and the Cleveland Municipal Airport Authority.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Cleveland itself (which is the
primary government), but also the operations of the Cleveland City Schools, Cleveland Public Library,
and Cleveland Municipal Airport Authority which are not considered legally separate. However, the
Cleveland Housing Authority, the Bradley/Cleveland Industrial Development Board, and the Health and
Educational Facilities Board are not legal entities of the City of Cleveland, and accordingly are excluded
from this report.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 16-17 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Cleveland,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Cleveland can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.



Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Cleveland maintains a number of individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and school fund, which are considered
to be major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements later in this report beginning on page 87.

The City of Cleveland adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the major governmental funds including the general fund
and school fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-53 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Cleveland maintains two different types of proprietary funds:
enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of
Cleveland uses enterprise funds to account for its Cleveland Utilities Electric and Water operations and
the Airport operations. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate
costs internally among the City of Cleveland’s various functions. The City of Cleveland uses an internal
service fund to account for servicing its fleet of vehicles. Because this service predominantly benefits
governmental rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary funds financial statements provide separate information for the
Cleveland Utilities Electric and Water operations and the Airport fund, all of which are considered to be
major funds of the City.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 54-57 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 58-85 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Cleveland’s progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information
can be found on page 86 of this report.



The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with the nonmajor governmental funds, as
well as the data for the internal service fund, are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information on pensions. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can
be found on pages 87-130 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of Cleveland, assets exceeded liabilities by $227,275,624 at the close of
this fiscal year.

The largest portion of the City of Cleveland’s net assets (87 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. The City of Cleveland uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Cleveland’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of Cleveland’s Net Assets

Governmental Business-type Total
activities activities
FY2011 FY2010 FY2011 FY2010 FY2011 FY2010

Current assets $51,224,566 $50,682,903 $40,151,720  $32,826,369 $91,376,286 $83,509,272
Receivables and other noncurrent
assets 0 0 1,513,450 1,225,951 1,513,450 1,225,951
Deferred Charges 5,283,658 6,093,631 572,160 568,758 5,855,818 6,662,389
Capital assets 134,902,606 127,973,344 190,439,077 177,275,563 325,341,683 305,248,907

Total assets 191,410,830 184,749,878 232,676,407 211,896,641 424,087,237 396,646,519
Long-term liabilities outstanding 79,715,582 80,184,017 63,287,814 57,034,463 143,003,396 137,218,480
Other liabilities 29,941,446 28,826,078 23,866,771 21,428,340 53,808,217 50,254,418

Total liabilities 109,657,028 109,010,095 87,154,585 78,462,803 196,811,613 187,472,898
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of 66,391,099 57,893,731 132,342,820 120,603,787 198,733,919 178,497,518

related debt

Restricted 2,926,017 473,440 0 0 2,926,017 473,440
Unrestricted 12,436,686 17,372,612 13,179,002 12,830,051 25,615,688 30,202,663

Total net assets $81,753,802  $75,739,783 $145,521,822  $133,433,838 $227,275,624  $209,173,621

One percent of the City of Cleveland’s net assets represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining $25,615,688 in unrestricted net assets may be
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

At June 30, 2011, the City of Cleveland is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net

assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities.



Governmental activities.

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs
Other
Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Planning and inspection
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Education
Interest on long-term debt
Water and sewer
Electric
Other enterprise

Total expenses

Increase in net assets before transfers

Transfers

Increase in net assets

Net assets — beginning

Net assets — ending

City of Cleveland’s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental activities increased the City of Cleveland’s net assets by
$6,014,019. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities

FY2011 FY2010 FY2011 FY2010 FY2011 FY2010
$7,618,007  $7,331,254 $118,211,319  $107,158,251 $125,829,326  $114,489,505
42,206,859 37,462,812 5,569 3,549 42,212,428 37,466,361
5,806,175 2,302,461 9,401,737 4,882,848 15,207,912 7,185,309
16,629,270 16,465,931 0 0 16,629,270 16,465,931
17,551,769 16,739,221 0 0 17,551,769 16,739,221
605,104 536,334 0 0 605,104 536,334
303,315 161,853 244,982 290,668 548,297 452,521
90,720,499 80,999,866 127,863,607 112,335,316 218,584,106 193,335,182
3,396,302 4,294,917 0 0 3,396,302 4,294,917
1,373,602 867,709 0 0 1,373,602 867,709
18,488,592 18,190,814 0 0 18,488,592 18,190,814
9,725,715 9,913,297 0 0 9,725,715 9,913,297
699,095 680,086 0 0 699,095 680,086
3,864,303 4,014,995 0 0 3,864,303 4,014,995
46,137,209 42,725,119 0 0 46,137,209 42,725,119
2,814,385 2,298,214 0 0 2,814,385 2,298,214
0 0 21,254,266 20,890,587 21,254,266 20,890,587
0 0 92,666,017 83,803,232 92,666,017 83,803,232
0 0 62,617 422,379 62,617 422,379
86,499,203 82,985,151 113,982,900 105,116,198 200,482,103 188,101,349
4,221,296  (1,985,285) 13,880,707 7,219,118 18,102,003 5,233,833
1,792,723 1,722,261 (1,792,723) (1,722,261) 0 0
6,014,019 (263,024) 12,087,984 5,496,857 18,102,003 5,233,833
75,739,783 76,002,807 133,433,838 127,936,981 209,173,621 203,939,788
$81,753,802  $75,739,783 $145,521,822  $133,433,838 $227,275,624  $209,173,621

= The city’s property tax rate was $1.4904 per $100 of assessed value in fiscal year 2011. Property tax
revenues increased in the commercial, residential and personal property categories.
= Operating grants and contributions increased $4,744,047 due to a combination of increases in
federal, state and Bradley County funds received for education.



= (Capital grants and contributions increased $3,503,714 primarily due to funding for ARRA road and
sidewalk projects, Safe Routes to Schools sidewalk funding and funding from Bradley County for
the completion of the Science Wing at Cleveland High School.

»  Cleveland’s second largest revenue source is local sales tax which increased $332,949. This is an
indication that the local economy is beginning to recover. In Tennessee, the first half of local sales
tax goes to education based upon average daily attendance. The second half is generally distributed
between cities and counties based upon whether the sale occurred in the city or the county; however,
Cleveland and Bradley County’s local sales tax (second half) is distributed according to a local
agreement, instead of the state’s situs-based formula.

»  The most significant change in expenditures was an increase of $3,412,090 for education.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
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Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities
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Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Cleveland’s net assets by
$12,087,984. The increase is attributed to a combination of the electric and water operations of
Cleveland Utilities and grants received for constructing the first and second phases of the new airport.
The change in net assets for Cleveland Utilities was the result of an increase in net assets invested in
capital assets (net of related debt). The charges for services increased more than $11,000,000 primarily
due to increases in the rates charged for electricity. This was offset by a corresponding increase in the
purchase of electricity.



Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Cleveland uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Cleveland’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City of Cleveland’s financing requirements. The unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available at the end of the fiscal year for
future unforeseen emergencies.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Cleveland’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $21,060,855, a decrease of $299,450. Of this amount, $477,703 is
nonspendable inventories and set aside for endowment, $2,452,381 is restricted with externally
enforceable limitations on use, $812,939 is committed by the City Council to a specific fund or use,
$7,165,754 is assigned for designated usage, and $10,152,078 is unassigned.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Cleveland. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance was $10,152,078. Unassigned fund balance represents 38% of total fund
expenditures. However, unassigned fund balance only represents 27% when compared to total fund
expenditures and transfers to other funds (e.g., debt service and schools).

The fund balance of the City of Cleveland’s general fund increased $1,040,945 during the current fiscal
year. This is attributed to revenues exceeding budgeted amounts (property taxes and state-shared
revenues) and all city departments spending less than the final amended budget. Several vacant
employee positions were not filled due to the decline in the national and local economy. The fund
balance of the School Fund increased $751,516. The increase is due to a combination of increased
federal and state funding over the original budget and expenditures for regular instruction and other
student support being less than budgeted.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $2,543,546. The net decrease in fund balance during
the current year was $702,698 due to reducing the transfer from the general fund in order to balance that
fund’s original budget. The remaining decrease in the governmental funds is primarily due to the use of

the debt proceeds received in the prior year and used in the current year for capital items at the City
Schools.

Proprietary funds. The City of Cleveland’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets at the end of the year amounted to $8,316,884 for the Cleveland Utilities Water

Division, $7,215,331 for Cleveland Utilities Electric Division, ($2,353,213) for the Cleveland Municipal
Airport Fund and $296,461 for the Fleet Management Fund.

-11-



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget resulted in an increase of
$647,718 in expenditures and $900,000 in transfers. Significant differences are listed below:

= $500,000 increase in the FEMA storm damage due to cleanup from tornado damages and $60,000
for public works operations due to increased repair costs and paving costs.

» Transfers to the capital improvement fund increased $900,000 in order to meet obligations related to
the relocation of the Whirlpool plant.

Departmental budget officers closely monitored expenditures during the fiscal year in order to minimize
budget amendments.

Differences between the final amended budget and actual expenditures were $637,709. Each
department contributed to this. Vacancies in various departments and reductions in various line items
throughout all departments accounted for this.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Cleveland’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business
type activities as of June 30, 2011 amounts to $325,341,683 (net of accumulated depreciation), which is
a $20,092,776 increase over last fiscal year. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
other improvements, equipment, and infrastructure.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

= Parks and Recreation added $320,530 in improvements to the Greenway and the two recreation
centers.

» Public safety activities added $340,905 in capital assets with the purchase of vehicles, radios and
bomb handling equipment.

= Public works activities added $2,659,368 primarily in road, sidewalk and drainage infrastructure.

= City schools placed in service $1,654,740 in capital assets with improvements being made to several
schools.

* Business-type activities added $13,163,514 in improvements for water, sewer and electric systems
and construction on the new airport.

-12-



City of Cleveland’s Capital Assets

(net of depreciation)
Governmental Business-type Total
activities activities
FY2011 FY2010 FY2011 FY2010 FY2011 FY2010

Land $ 9112070 $ 9,112,070 $ 25,549,104 $ 16,178,374 $ 34,661,174 $ 25,290,444
Buildings and
systems 70,964,415 71,631,550 159,770,610 157,500,920 230,735,025 229,132,470
Improvements
other than
buildings 3,162,758 3,036,527 0 0 3,162,758 3,036,527
Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment &
vehicles 7,213,506 7,742,669 186,645 203,936 7,400,151 7,946,605
Infrastructure 35,328,914 33,945,065 0 0 35,328,914 33,945,065
Construction in
progress 9,120,943 2,505,463 4,932,718 3,392,333 14,053,661 5,897,796
Total $34902606 $27973,344  $190,439,077  $177,275,563  $325,341,683  $305,248,907

Additional information on the City of Cleveland’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 66-67

of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Cleveland had total debt outstanding
of $132,215,523. Of this amount, $40,950,000 comprises bonds backed solely by the full faith and
credit of the city. The city also issues bonds secured by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds);
however, in the event of default, the full faith and credit of the city are irrevocably pledged. The city
had $62,700,000 in revenue bonds outstanding at the end of the fiscal year. The city also finances
capital projects through loans from bond proceeds issued by the Public Building Authorities of Sevier
and Blount Counties, Tennessee, including $27,398,285 for city general projects and $792,000 for
Cleveland Utilities. The City also has a capital lease on lighting upgrades for the City Schools in the

amount of $375,238.
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City of Cleveland’s Outstanding Debt

(General Obligation Bonds, Revenue Bonds, Loans through Bond Proceeds issued by the Public
Building Authorities of Sevier and Blount Counties, Tennessee, and other long-term notes)

Governmental Business-type Total
activities activities
FY2011 FY2010 FY2011 FY2010 FY2011 FY2010

General obligation
bonds 40,950,000 42,805,000 0 0 40,950,000 42,805,000
Long-term notes issued

through various

agencies in TN 27,398,285 27,494,716 792,000 606,994 28,190,285 28,101,710
Capital leases 375,238 0 0 0 375,238 0
Revenue bonds 0 0 62,700,000 57,165,000 62,700,000 57,165,000
Less bond discount/
premiums 237,132 261,880 154,692 210,919 391,824 472,799
Less Deferred Charges
for refunding (449,148) (481,983) (1,180,176) (1,311,137) (1,629,324)  (1,793,120)
Total 68,511,507 70,079,613 62,466,516 56,671,776 130,978,023 126,751,389

During a prior year, the Public Building Authorities, at the request of the city, entered into interest rate
swap agréements for all of the outstanding Local Government Improvement Bonds, Series IV-C-3 and
A-2-A. During the term of the swap agreements, the city effectively pays a fixed rate on the debt plus or
minus the difference between the variable interest due the bondholders and the variable rate received
from the counterparty. Additional details about the city’s long-term debt are included in Note 6 on
pages 68-73.

The City of Cleveland maintains an “A+” rating from Standard & Poor’s and an “Aa3” rating from
Moody’s Investor Service for general obligation debt. The revenue bonds of Cleveland Utilities carry
the same ratings.

State statutes do not limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue;
however, the city has adopted a financial policy which limits long-term debt to 10 percent of its total
assessed valuation. This calculation does not include revenue bonds issued for improvements in the
electric and water systems. The city’s legal debt margin at June 30, 2011 is $45,661,023, and is
calculated on page 162 of this report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

= The June 2011 unemployment rate for Cleveland was 10.3 percent, which is up from the 9.6 percent
a year ago. Bradley County was 10.1 percent, which is up from 9.4 percent from a year ago.
Tennessee’s average unemployment rate was 9.8 percent and the national average rate was 9.3
percent.

» The city qualifies as an Entitlement Community for the CDBG program due to designation as a
principal city in a Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA).

* Local sales tax collections increased 3.4% from the previous fiscal year. This is a positive sign that
a recovery in the current economy may be occurring. State sales tax collections have shown positive
signs as well.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the city’s budget for the 2012 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased $1,040,945 as
previously discussed. Management has again been conservative in estimating revenues for 2012. The
city’s property tax rate did not increase, and the residential sanitation fee remained at $6.95 per month.
No use of the general fund balance is projected for the new fiscal year.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Cleveland’s finances for all
those with an interest in the city’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in

this report or requests for additional financial information may be addressed to the City of Cleveland,
Office of the Finance Director, Post Office Box 1519, Cleveland, Tennessee 37364-1519.
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BAsIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments
Accounts receivable - net
Property taxes receivable - net
Sales tax receivable
Due from other government agencies
Internal balances
Inventories
Prepaids
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:

Receivable from customers for conservation loans

Deferred charges
Deferred outflow of resources
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress

June 30,2011

Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accrued liabilities
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Unearned revenue
Bonds, notes and capital leases - current
Compensated absences payable - current
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Conservation advances from TVA
Derivative - interest rate swap
Bonds, notes and capital leases payable
Compensated absences payable
Post-employment benefits payable
Total long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Primary Government

Business-
“Governmental type

Activities Activities Total
$ 15,082,791 $ 14,794905 $ 29,877,696
459,936 4,370,259 4,830,195
388,735 0 388,735
739,562 19,215,219 19,954,781
17,956,697 0 17,956,697
1,117,667 0 1,117,667
12,797,451 1,372,349 14,169,800
2,480,000 (2,480,000) 0
201,727 1,900,210 2,101,937
0 978,778 978,778
$ 51,224,566 $§ 40,151,720 $ 91,376,286
$ 0 $§ 1,464812 § 1,464,812
800,620 572,160 1,372,780
4,483,038 0 4,483,038
0 48,638 48,638
18,233,013 30,481,822 48,714,835
116,669,593 159,957,255 276,626,848
$ 140,186,264 $ 192,524,687 $ 332,710,951
$ 191,410,830 $ 232,676,407 $ 424,087,237
$ 3,613,616 $ 3,145735 § 6,759,351
2,134,609 14,072,754 16,207,363
0 2,789,864 2,789,864
21,607,230 0 21,607,230
2,451,065 3,858,418 6,309,483
134,926 0 134,926
$ 29941446 $ 23,866,771 $ 53,808,217
$ 0 $ 1502945 $ 1,502,945
4,483,038 0 4,483,038
66,060,442 58,608,098 124,668,540
1,551,654 0 1,551,654
7,620,448 3,176,771 10,797,219
$ 79,715,582 $ 63,287,814 $§ 143,003,396
$ 109,657,028 $ 87,154,585 $ 196,811,613
$ 66,391,099 $ 132,342,820 $ 198,733,919
2,926,017 0 2,926,017
12,436,686 13,179,002 25,615,688
$ 81,753,802 § 145,521,822 $ 227,275,624
-16 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Other Total
General School Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5032893 $§ 4,170,262 $ 5791,532 § 14,994,687
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 0 0 459,936 459,936
Investments 0 0 388,735 388,735
Accounts receivable - net 506,919 0 194,671 701,590
Property taxes receivable - net 17,956,697 0 0 17,956,697
Sales tax receivable 450,732 666,935 0 1,117,667
Due from other government agencies 3,533,478 6,833,446 2,430,527 12,797,451
Due from other funds 2,755,500 34,064 41,834 2,831,398
Inventories 4,067 0 0 4,067
Total Assets $ 30,240,286 $§ 11,704,707 $§ 9,307,235 § 51,252,228
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities $ 991,645 $§ 2,094,682 § 382,059 § 3,468,386
Accounts payable 570,772 988,846 541,716 2,107,334
Due to other funds 41,834 0 309,564 351,398
Matured interest payable 0 0 1,097 1,097
Matured bonds payable 0 0 1,000 1,000
Deferred revenue 18,479,890 5,757,236 25,032 24,262,158
Total Liabilities $ 20,084,141 $ 8,840,764 $§ 1266468 $ 30,191,373
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories $ 4,067 $ 0 3 0 3 4,067
Permanent fund principal 0 0 473,636 473,636
Restricted for:
Law enforcement 0 0 221,699 221,699
Community development - federal grants 0 0 29,787 29,787
Street improvements 0 0 220,031 220,031
Capital outlay 0 0 1,850,014 1,850,014
Education 0 61,180 69,670 130,850
Committed to:
Solid Waste 0 0 694,904 694,904
Stormwater 0 0 116,724 116,724
Law enforcement 0 0 1,311 1,311
Assigned to:
Education 0 2,802,763 300,790 3,103,553
Library 0 0 261,045 261,045
Debt service 0 0 2,543,546 2,543,546
Capital outlay 0 0 1,257,610 1,257,610
Unassigned 10,152,078 0 0 10,152,078
Total fund balances $ 10,156,145 $ 2,863,943 § 8,040,767 $ 21,060,855
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 30,240,286 $§ 11,704,707 $ 9,307,235 §$§ 51,252,228

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011

Total fund balances per governmental funds balance sheet $ 21,060,855

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 133,734,705

Long-term liabilities, including bonds, notes payable, compensated
absences, post-employment benefits and interest payable are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (77,161,048)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of fleet management services to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets. 1,464,360

Some of the City's revenues will be collected after year-end but are
not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds. 2,654,930

Net assets of governmental activities $ 81,753,802

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues:

Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Community development
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Education
Appropriations
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Notes issued
Capital leases
Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Other Total
General School Governmental ~ Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 27,886,082 $ 0 §$ 2,533,563 $§ 30,419,645
541,038 0 43,500 584,538
4,798,721 31,355,264 15,723,740 51,877,725
787,414 0 85,266 872,680
2,721,820 226,121 3,212,847 6,160,788
23,474 5,295 22,136 50,905
130,625 433,302 269,231 833,158
$ 36,889,174 $§ 32,019,982 $ 21,890,283 $ 90,799,439
$ 2,145914 § 0 $ 230,584 $ 2,376,498
580,004 0 180,468 760,472
15,934,366 0 704,591 16,638,957
4,312,289 0 4,100,192 8,412,481
533,470 0 0 533,470
2,002,069 0 1,252,074 3,254,143
0 36,027,805 7,700,356 43,728,161
1,070,897 0 0 1,070,897
: 0 0 11,792,319 11,792,319
0 128,721 2,153,946 2,282,667
0 15,003 2,733,019 2,748,022
$ 26,579,009 $ 36,171,529 $ 30,847,549 $ 93,598,087
$ 10,310,165 $ (4,151,547) $ (8,957,266) $ (2,798,648)
$ 1,826,723 $ 5,120,282 $§ 7,566,072 $ 14,513,077
- (11,095,943) (611,491) (1,012,920) (12,720,354)
0 0 312,203 312,203
0 394,272 0 394272
$ (9,269,220) $ 4,903,063 $ 6,865,355 $ 2,499,198
$ 1,040945 §$ 751,516 $ (2,091,911) $  (299,450)
9,115,200 2,112,427 10,132,678 21,360,305
$ 10,156,145 $ 2,863,943 § 8,040,767 $ 21,060,855

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances for total governmental funds $ (299,450)

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 6,993,292

Governmental funds report only the proceed from the sale of assets and do not
take into effect the cost of capital assets sold. (36,017)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (42,922)

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets. 2,282,667

Notes issued are reported as a financial resource in the governmental funds.
However, this is reported as an increase in long-term liabilities in the
statement of net assets. During the current year additional loan proceeds
were drawn on notes and capital leases payable issued. (706,475)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management services to individual funds. The net activity of the internal
service fund is reported with governmental activities. (17,934)

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. These activities consist of:

Net decrease in accrued interest $ 10,204

Amortization of debt issuance cost (68,481)
Amortization of deferred charges (32,835)
Amortization of bond premiums 24,748

Increase in compensated absences (53,691)
Increase in post-employment benefits (2,039,087)

Total additional expenditures (2,159,142)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 6,014,019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property taxes - real estate $ 16,000,000 $ 16,200,000 $ 16,433,499 $ 233,499
Property taxes - utility 362,000 349,000 349,653 653
Interest and penalty on taxes 160,000 250,000 275,607 25,607
In lieu of taxes 70,000 80,000 77,898 2,102)
Local sales tax 7,400,000 7,600,000 7,639,851 39,851
Wholesale beer tax 1,230,000 1,260,000 1,303,212 43,212
Gross receipts tax 900,000 900,000 962,609 62,609
Franchise taxes - gas 670,000 600,000 442,508 (157,492)
Franchise taxes - charter 370,000 400,000 401,245 1,245
Total taxes $ 27,162,000 $ 27,639,000 $ 27,886,082 § 247,082
Licenses and permits:
Beer licenses $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5600 § 600
Beer renewal fee 11,000 11,000 13,409 2,409
Liquor license 0 0 2,860 2,860
Liquor license renewals 15,000 15,000 15,765 765
Building permits 120,000 299,000 294,257 4,743)
Electrical permits 7,000 7,000 8214 1,214
Electrical licenses 16,000 16,000 17,116 1,116
Mechanical permits 11,000 11,000 13,555 2,555
Mechanical licenses 7,000 7,000 6,850 (150)
Plumbing permits 15,000 15,000 20,287 5,287
Plumbing licenses 9,000 9,000 10,850 1,850
Street cut permits 70,000 70,000 67,740 (2,260)
Land disturbance permit 5,000 5,000 8,985 3,985
Tree permit ' 0 0 120 120
Rezoning fee 2,000 2,000 1,200 (800)
Pud rezoning fee 0 0 500 500
Zoning appeal fee 500 500 1,450 950
Zoning letter fee 1,000 1,000 525 475)
Minor encroachment fee 0 0 400 400
Certificate of appropriateness 0 0 625 625
Recreation permits and maintenance fee 5,000 5,000 5,950 950
Plat review fee 2,000 2,000 1,634 (366)
Plans review fee 9,000 40,100 38,271 (1,829)
Certificate of occupancy 4,000 4,000 4,550 550
Alley or street abandonment fee 0 0 300 300
Wrecker permit fees 0 0 25 25
Total licenses and permits $ 314,500 $ 524,600 $ 541,038 $ 16,438
Intergovernmental revenues:
Federal grant - FEMA $ 0 $§ 500,000 $ 553,499 §$ 53,499
Police training supplement 55,200 55,200 51,000 (4,200)
Fire training supplement 57,600 57,600 52,200 (5,400)
State-highway safety grant 0 4,900 2,550 (2,350)
State sales tax 2,300,000 2,450,000 2,505,215 55,215
State income tax 675,000 675,000 721,957 46,957

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -22-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues - (Continued)
Intergovernmental revenues - (Continued)
State beer tax $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 19,521 § 479)
State mixed drink tax 90,000 90,000 98,790 8,790
State gas inspection tax 80,000 80,000 80,683 683
State highway maintenance tax 180,000 180,000 194,575 14,575
T.V.A. - In lieu of taxes 370,000 370,000 421,870 51,870
Excise tax 200,000 200,000 96,861 (103,139)
Total intergovernmental revenues $ 4,027800 $ 4,682,700 $ 4,798,721 $ 116,021
Fines and forfeitures:
Traffic tickets $ 650,000 $ 650,000 $ 610416 $ (39,584)
Parking tickets 30,000 30,000 30,031 31
Animal Shelter 1,000 1,000 650 (350)
Code enforcement fines 0 0 1,865 1,865
Garnishments 0 0 258 258
Court clerk fees 1,500 1,500 2,419 919
Drug fines 20,000 20,000 19,024 (976)
Sessions court 30,000 30,000 26,917 (3,083)
Circuit court 16,000 16,000 14,537 (1,463)
Officers - sessions court 35,000 35,000 71,003 36,003
Officers - circuit court 1,500 1,500 2,573 1,073
State refunds 0 0 970 970
Sex offender registry 3,000 3,000 6,751 3,751
Total fines and forfeitures $ 788,000 $ 788,000 § 787414 § (586)
Charges for services:
Fire inspection fees $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,480 § 480
Police accident reports 2,000 2,000 0 (2,000)
Police department contracted services 0 0 26,841 26,841
Police department housing authority cont. 50,000 50,000 49,681 (319)
Airport maintenance 5,000 5,000 25,151 20,151
Animal Shelter - boarding fees 9,000 9,000 8,735 (265)
Animal Shelter - spay/neuter 33,000 33,000 22,012 (10,988)
Bradley County - animal control 335,000 335,000 325,779 9,221)
Bradley County - fire protection 1,822,200 1,822,200 1,822,200 0
Tinsley Pool gate 22,000 22,000 24,900 2,900
Tinsley Pool concessions 5,000 5,000 4,732 (268)
Tinsley Pool rental 4,000 4,000 4,225 225
Tinsley Park tournament 0 0 1,165 1,165
Tinsley Park concessions 22,000 22,000 17,474 (4,526)
Tinsley Park rental 1,500 1,500 1,130 (370)
Cleveland Community Center 5,000 5,000 5,236 236
College Hill Recreation 11,000 11,000 7,392 (3,608)
College Hill program fee 7,000 7,000 8,159 1,159
Park and recreation miscellaneous 1,000 1,000 2,101 1,101

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -23-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues - (Continued):
Charges for services - (Continued)
SRO - City Schools $ 180,000 $ 180,000 $ 199,580 § 19,580
Waterville concessions 15,000 15,000 27,816 12,816
Waterville permits-Jr/Sr 8,000 8,000 19,865 11,865
Waterville permits-Individual 8,000 8,000 6,916 (1,084)
Waterville permits-Family 1,000 1,000 1,970 970
Waterville tournaments 12,000 12,000 6,735 (5,265)
Waterville specials 90,000 90,000 46,209 (43,791)
Waterville cart rental fee 16,000 16,000 16,427 427
Waterville trail fee 500 500 0 (500)
Waterville cart shed rental 800 800 1,700 900
Waterville green fee weekday reg. 2,000 2,000 611 (1,389)
Waterville green fee weekday 9 hole 5,000 5,000 4,560 (440)
Waterville green fee weekday Jr/Sr 10,000 10,000 6,590 (3,410)
Waterville green fee weekend Reg 2,000 2,000 731 (1,269)
Waterville green fee weekend 9 hole 1,500 1,500 3,304 1,804
Waterville pro shop 4,000 4,000 3,235 (765)
Waterville miscellaneous 2,000 2,000 1,355 (645)
Wellness program dues-city 4,000 0 8,727 8,727
Wellness program dues-schools _ 4,000 4,000 2,657 (1,343)
Wellness program dues 0 4,000 4,439 439
Total charges for services $ 2,701,500 $ 2,701,500 $ 2,721,820 $ 20,320
Interest | $ 3,000 $ 10,000 $ 23474 § 13,474
Miscellaneous revenues:
Sale of maps-engineering $ 0 3 0 3 134§ 134
Sale of mulch 0 0 2,695 2,695
Sale of scrap metal 0 0 84 84
Sale of land-Ocoee Corporate 0 10,005 10,005 0
Donations - Memorial tree fund 0 7,125 9,640 2,515
Old timers banquet 2,200 2,200 1,800 (400)
Sign and decal reimbursement 2,000 2,000 2,924 924
Donations - Cleveland Fire Department 0 700 700 0
" Police dept .- Miscellaneous donations 0 500 501 1
D.A.R.E. Program 0 0 25 25
Donations - police dog 0 0 900 900
TML package bonus 5,000 5,000 5,000 0
TML driver safety grant 0 5,000 1,308 (3,692)
Miscellaneous insurance revenue 0 0 12,824 12,824
Reimbursements - Fire truck 0 3,600 3,568 (32)
Animal Shelter donations 0 1,307 1,660 353
City's nickname donations 0 0 200 200
Fire misc/reports 0 0 409 409
TML reimbursement for property damage 0 42,952 29,188 (13,764)
TML work comp salary reimbursement 0 0 4,711 4,711
Employee jury duty reimbursement 0 0 22 22
Sundry income 4,000 60,529 25,050 (35,479)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -24 -



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues - (Continued):
Miscellaneous revenues - (Continued)
Sundry income - copies $ 0 3 0 $ 2 8 2
Sundry income - clerk and master 0 0 17,015 17,015
Temporary collection account 0 0 235 235
Sundry - city code books 0 0 25 25

Total miscellaneous revenues $ 13200 $ 140,918 § 130,625 § (10,293)
Total revenues $ 35,010,000 $ 36,486,718 $ 36,889,174 § 402,456
Expenditures:
Current

General government:
Legislative and judicial:

Salaries - administrative $ 60,200 $ 60,200 $ 60,450 § (250)
Salaries - city council 62,400 62,400 62,833 (433)
Salaries - judicial 34,200 34,200 34,283 (83)
Part time wages 1,200 1,200 0 1,200
Service awards 500 500 200 300
Longevity 3,500 3,500 3,400 100
Sold vacations 1,200 1,200 1,157 43
Christmas bonus 300 300 325 (25)
Dental insurance 5,800 5,800 4,926 874
Social Security taxes 12,400 12,400 11,027 1,373
Health insurance 70,800 70,800 56,343 14,457
Retirement 27,000 27,000 21,924 5,076
Life and disability insurance 4,900 4,900 1,197 3,703
Election expense 15,000 15,000 0 15,000
Postage 500 500 226 274
Printing 1,500 1,500 376 1,124
Subscriptions and memberships 5,200 5,200 303 4,897
Advertising 3,000 3,000 1,435 1,565
Telephone and pager 11,000 11,000 10,352 648
Government consulting services 8,000 8,000 6,000 2,000
Equipment repair and replacement 1,600 1,600 0 1,600
Contract maintenance services 3,500 3,500 3,330 170
Emergency repairs - city buildings 20,000 15,000 17,008 (2,008)
Travel and training 12,000 12,000 6,565 5,435
Council work sessions 3,000 3,000 3,095 95)
Complimentary meals 1,200 1,200 966 234
Office expenditures and paper 4,000 4,000 4,233 (233)
Janitorial 400 400 0 400
Gasoline 0 0 25 25)
Insurance - general liability 900 900 899 1
Insurance - workers compensation 1,100 1,100 621 479
Rent - parking lots 3,000 3,000 0 3,000
Service pins - all departments 900 900 310 590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -25-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE

Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
General government - (Continued)
Legislative and judicial - (Continued)

Employee Christmas dinner
Employee picnic
Miscellaneous
Contingency
Office machinery and equipment
Council room equipment and supplies

Total legislative and judicial

Administration and finance
Salaries
Overtime wages
Part time wages
Service awards
Longevity
Sold vacations
Christmas bonus
College pay
Dental insurance
Social Security tax
Health insurance
Retirement
Life and disability insurance
Employee assistance program
Education reimbursement
Worker's compensation claims
Flex spending program
Laundry and dry cleaning
Postage
Postage machine lease
Printing
Printing - property taxes
Citizens Newsletter
Subscriptions and memberships
Advertising
Utilities
Telephone
Contracted services - computer systems
Drug and alcohol tests
Legal fees
Audit fees
Reappraisal fee

GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 1,800 1,800 2,206 (406)
6,000 6,000 8,149 (2,149)
500 500 269 231
0 2,500 2,500 0
700 700 0 700
1,200 1,200 92 1,108
$ 390,400 387,900 327,025 60,875
$ 702,000 642,000 641,258 742
8,000 13,000 12,131 869
56,000 63,000 65,188 (2,188)
400 400 75 325
9,300 9,300 7,800 1,500
10,000 10,000 8,277 1,723
1,700 1,700 1,408 292
2,600 2,600 1,965 635
6,200 6,200 5,506 694
60,000 60,000 53,213 6,787
108,000 96,000 92,365 3,635
123,000 123,000 111,224 11,776
8,500 8,500 7,797 703
9,600 9,600 9,156 444
0 0 711 711)
0 0 546 (546)
8,000 8,000 10,521 2,521)
1,400 1,400 1,511 (111)
19,500 19,500 17,333 2,167
800 800 714 86
12,000 12,000 3,330 8,670
4,200 4,200 4,650 (450)
1,500 1,500 0 1,500
5,000 5,000 6,115 (1,115)
11,000 11,000 13,669 (2,669)
26,000 26,000 26,745 (745)
27,000 27,000 28,693 (1,693)
230,000 230,000 222223 7,777
3,500 3,500 2,266 1,234
105,000 165,000 183,346 (18,346)
50,000 50,000 48,500 1,500
50,000 50,000 47,012 2,988
-26 -
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CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
General government - (Continued)
Administration and finance - (Continued)
Appraisal fee $ 1,500 $ 1,500 $ 0 3 1,500
Actuarial services 10,000 10,000 10,000 0
Vehicle 500 500 40 460
Small equipment repairs 600 600 182 418
Copier maintenance 2,800 2,800 2,571 229
Building maintenance 22,000 22,000 28,878 (6,878)
Car allowance 12,600 12,600 12,600 0
Training and travel 9,000 9,000 8,950 50
Departmental work sessions 0 0 1,139 (1,139)
Credit card fees 16,000 16,000 16,927 927)
Pest control 1,000 1,000 948 52
Office expenditures 28,000 28,000 28,751 - (751)
First aid safety supplies 100 100 78 22
Janitorial supplies A 2,000 2,000 1,566 434
Gasoline and oil 2,000 2,000 2,617 617)
Insurance - buildings and contents 3,300 3,300 3,240 60
Insurance - vehicles 300 300 210 90
Insurance - general liability 4,500 4,400 4,303 97
Insurance - workers compensation - 3,600 3,600 2,822 778
Insurance - professional liability 35,000 32,000 31,326 674
Insurance - employee bonds 0 1,500 1,275 225
Contracted services - security 1,500 0 1,500 (1,500)
Contracted services - MTAS 6,500 6,500 0 6,500
Employee appreciation day 9,000 9,000 12,378 (3,378)
Miscellaneous 500 500 448 52
Bad debt 35,000 35,000 10,047 24,953
Equipment 1,100 1,100 845 255
Total administration and finance $ 1868600 $ 1865500 $ 1,818,889 §$ 46,611
Total general government $ 2,259,000 $§ 2253400 $ 2,145914 § 107,486
Community development:
Salaries $ 310,700 § 330,000 $ 334,758 § (4,758)
Overtime wages 1,600 1,600 1,539 61
Part time wages 4,500 4,500 4,493 7
Service awards 100 600 525 75
Longevity 2,700 2,900 3,259 (359)
Sold vacations 2,800 4,300 1,773 2,527
Christmas bonus 800 800 775 25
College pay 0 0 625 (625)
Dental insurance 3,900 4,300 4,227 73
Social security taxes 24,800 26,800 24,622 2,178
Health insurance 57,700 56,200 53,185 3,015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -27-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts . Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
Community development - (Continued)

Retirement $ 53,300 $ 55,000 $ 52,761 § 2,239
Life and disability insurance 3,900 3,900 3,612 288
Education reimbursement 2,900 2,900 0 2,900
Worker's compensation claims 200 200 0 200
Laundry and dry cleaning 1,000 1,000 657 343
Postage 1,000 3,800 4,999 (1,199)
Contracted services 0 900 11,271 (10,371)
Printing and artwork 1,300 1,300 887 413
Subscriptions and memberships 4,500 4,500 2,719 1,781
Advertising 1,500 1,500 659 841
Utilities 9,100 9,100 9,380 (280)
Telephone 13,000 13,000 11,806 1,194
Vehicle maintenance 4,400 3,800 1,664 2,136
Office equipment maintenance 1,500 1,500 1,150 350
Building maintenance 3,000 4,000 3,919 81
Car allowance 4,200 4,200 4,200 0
Travel and training 6,500 8,500 8,320 180
Complimentary meals 400 400 107 : 293
Credit card fees 3,000 3,000 4,018 (1,018)
Contracted services - pest control 300 300 216 84
Office supplies 6,000 7,000 6,940 60
O.S.H.A. first aid kits 200 200 83 117
Janitorial supplies 800 800 589 211
Uniforms 1,100 1,500 1,603 (103)
Gasoline and oil 7,000 7,500 4,203 3,297
Insurance - buildings and contents 800 800 402 398
Insurance - vehicles and equipment 800 800 740 60
Insurance - general liability 1,700 1,300 1,290 10
Insurance - workers compensation 11,000 9,000 8,631 369
Insurance - employee bonds 100 100 0 100
Planning commission 4,000 3,000 1,980 1,020
Board of zoning appeals 700 700 659 41
Historic zoning commission 700 700 533 167
Miscellaneous 500 500 225 275

Total community development $ 560,000 $ 588,700 $ 580,004 § 8,696

Public safety:

Police department:
Salaries $§ 4255000 $ 4,161,500 $ 4,177,867 $ (16,367)
Overtime wages 225,000 250,000 298,470 (48,470)
Part-time wages 14,700 14,700 13,464 1,236
Accumulated holiday pay 5,000 2,500 10 2,490
Salaries - school patrol : 75,200 80,200 73,210 6,990

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -28 -



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL.
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
Public safety - (Continued)
Police department - (Continued)
Supplemental pay $ 1,300 $ 1,400 $ 1,652 § (252)
State grant - in service training 55,200 55,200 50,400 4,800
Overtime - contracted services A 0 25,000 18,955 6,045
Service awards 1,800 2,100 2,050 50
Longevity 56,500 55,500 55,233 267
Sold vacations 46,000 46,000 41,401 4,599
Christmas pay 13,200 11,900 11,911 an
College pay 8,600 8,700 8,695 5
Dental insurance 48,400 46,900 44,711 2,189
Social security taxes 366,300 354,300 341,908 12,392
Health insurance 722,700 710,000 658,074 51,926
Retirement 936,500 923,100 895,796 27,304
Life and disability insurance 52,400 52,900 52,626 274
Unemployment compensation 2,800 10,000 11,232 (1,232)
Education reimbursement 1,700 4,300 4,290 10
Worker's compensation claims 10,000 15,000 14,595 405
Laundry and dry cleaning 20,000 21,100 18,498 2,602
Employee physicals 10,000 10,000 5,718 4,282
Pre-employment tests 3,000 11,500 8,138 3,362
Uniforms - school patrol 2,000 2,000 380 1,620
Postage 2,000 5,000 4,020 980
800 MHZ radio expense 24,000 24,000 5,705 18,295
Lease - radio tower 4,500 8,100 8,032 68
Contracted services - vehicles 5,600 5,600 5,442 158
Communications - replacement 11,000 11,000 6,711 4,289
Printing 10,000 10,000 4,153 5,847
Subscriptions and memberships 3,900 11,900 9,273 2,627
Accreditation 5,500 7,000 6,119 881
Advertising ' 800 800 1,036 (236)
Utilities 90,700 85,000 81,515 3,485
Telephone 125,000 140,000 146,882 (6,882)
NCIC computer line ' 8,000 8,000 8,000 0
TBI evidence analysis fees 14,000 14,000 0 14,000
Vehicle maintenance 330,000 330,000 308,903 21,097
Small equipment repair 2,000 2,200 1,913 287
Copier maintenance 1,800 1,600 1,286 314
Building maintenance 20,000 20,000 19,169 831
Travel and training 33,800 39,800 39,724 76
Mutual aid meals 1,500 1,500 375 1,125

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -29-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued) :
Current - (Continued)
Public safety - (Continued)
Police department - (Continued)
Janitorial contract $ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ 29,463 § 537
Police supplies 5,000 5,000 5,368 (368)
Batteries 2,000 2,000 861 1,139
Tapes - video and audio 1,000 1,000 0 1,000
Detective supplies 2,000 5,000 4,020 980
Crime scene unit supplies 2,000 2,000 1,384 616
SRT supplies 5,000 5,000 630 4,370
Office expenditures and paper 28,000 28,000 26,137 1,863
Protective vests - federal grants 0 2,500 0 2,500
Protective vests 8,000 8,000 942 7,058
OSHA safety supplies 800 800 690 110
Janitorial supplies 2,000 2,000 © 2,458 (458)
Uniforms 47,000 47,000 27,987 19,013
Ammunition 35,000 35,000 27,224 7,776
Crime prevention 1,500 1,500 945 555
Firing range 2,000 2,000 2,165 (165)
Code Enf Educational Supplies 0 3,000 39 2,961
Gasoline and oil 200,000 250,000 256,277 6,277)
Video maintenance 1,000 0 0 0
Canine fees 3,000 3,000 3,551 (551)
Insurance - buildings and contents 11,100 11,100 7,863 3,237
Insurance - vehicles and equipment 37,000 38,000 38,122 (122)
Insurance - general liability 74,000 74,000 73,232 768
Insurance - workers compensation 157,000 113,000 107,844 5,156
Insurance - employee bonds 500 500 600 (100)
Computer software support 0 2,000 1,950 50
Miscellaneous 500 500 402 98
Honor Guard 500 500 27 473
Volunteer services 2,500 1,800 793 1,007
Investigative funds 1,500 1,500 1,500 0
Sex offender registry 3,000 3,000 2,297 703
Donations - detectives 0 500 500 0
Guns/taser replacements 11,000 11,000 5,223 5,777
Small equipment 500 500 401 99
Computer equipment 3,000 3,000 1,340 1,660
Total police department $ 8,304,800 $ 8295000  $§ 8,099,777 § 195,223

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -30-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
Public safety - (Continued)
Fire department:
Salaries $ 4,340,000 $ 4,340,000 $ 4,356,088 § (16,088)
Overtime wages 160,000 160,000 179,116 (19,116)
Fire runs 10,000 10,000 7,556 2,444
Supplemental pay 70,500 70,500 72,121 (1,621)
State grant - in service training 57,600 57,600 52,800 4,800
Service awards 1,900 1,900 1,700 200
Longevity 50,400 50,400 55,145 (4,745)
Sold vacations 15,000 15,000 12,736 2,264
Christmas bonus 10,300 10,300 8,554 1,746
College pay 1,000 1,000 2,572 (1,572)
Dental insurance 48,100 48,100 45,483 2,617
Social security taxes 375,200 375,200 339,857 35,343
Health insurance 800,000 800,000 855,658 (55,658)
Retirement 952,000 952,000 940,292 11,708
Life and disability insurance 50,600 50,600 54,816 4,216)
Education reimbursement 15,000 11,000 3,524 7,476
Worker's compensation claims 6,500 6,500 2,073 4,427
Laundry and dry cleaning 18,000 18,000 17,563 437
Immunization and physicals 40,000 40,000 37,974 2,026
Recruit testing 5,000 5,000 4,932 68
Postage 500 500 445 55
800 MHZ radio maintenance fee 0 6,000 6,264 (264)
Radio and repeater maintenance 6,000 1,800 1,800 0
Communications replacement 3,000 3,000 1,105 1,895
Printing 500 500 360 140
Subscriptions and memberships 3,200 3,200 3,697 497)
License/certification renewal 1,400 1,400 1,857 457
Advertising 500 0 96 (96)
Utilities 105,000 105,000 96,886 8,114
Telephone 66,300 66,300 79,033 (12,733)
Apparatus equipment testing 3,900 3,900 2,463 1,437
Vehicle maintenance 65,000 68,600 108,413 (39,813)
Small equipment repair 2,800 2,800 223 2,571
Copier maintenance 1,900 1,900 2,413 (513)
Building maintenance 40,000 40,000 35,654 4,346
Car allowance 0 3,900 3,850 50
Travel and training 21,000 21,000 19,111 1,889
Training/education material 3,500 3,500 2,284 1,216
Mutual aid meals 1,300 1,800 2,001 (201)
Towels and cloths 800 800 608 192
Batteries 1,000 1,000 485 515
Electronics - camera supplies 600 600 0 600
Office supplies 6,500 6,500 8,091 (1,591)
Arson supplies 1,500 1,500 1,096 404

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -31-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
Public safety - (Continued)
Fire department - (Continued)
Safety $ 4,500 $ 4,500 $ 1,458 § 3,042
Medical supplies/equipment 0 9,000 8,281 719
Janitorial supplies 16,000 16,000 12,991 3,009
Bedding 1,000 495 89 406
Uniforms 40,000 37,360 24,173 13,187
Vehicle graphics 500 500 0 500
Operating costs 2,000 3,000 3,007 )
Gasoline 53,000 52,300 60,088 (7,788)
Appliance repair 3,500 3,500 3,638 (138)
PPE equipment gear 0 29,448 24,175 5,273
Extinguisher refills 2,000 2,000 761 1,239
Hazmat supplies 0 2,000 2,702 (702)
Insurance - building and contents 8,000 8,000 5,687 2,313
Insurance - vehicles and equipment 24,000 23,000 22,293 707
Insurance - general liability 35,900 32,000 31,724 276
Insurance - workers compensation 135,000 135,000 85,855 49,145
Miscellaneous 500 500 865 (365)
Public information 500 500 0 500
City funded - Honor Guard 1,000 1,000 896 104
Fire prevention program 3,200 4,136 2,572 1,564
Radio tower/repeater maintenance 1,800 0 0 0
Medical supplies/equipment 9,000 0 0 0
Hazmat supplies - 2,000 0 0 0
PPE equipment 25,000 0 0 0
Donation expense 0 700 0 700
ISO firefighting equipment 15,000 14,300 5,473 8,827
Office equipment 1,000 1,000 0 1,000
Breathing apparatus equipment 15,000 18,504 7,871 10,633
Furniture 2,200 8,345 8,115 230
Computer equipment 0 0 8 ®)
Small equipment 800 800 558 242
Radio equipment 3,500 4,200 3,817 - 383
Total fire department $§ 7,769,200 $ 7,780,688 $ 7,745892 § 34,796
Safety program: 4
Salaries $ 48,700 $ 48,700 § 48,929 § (229)
Longevity 1,100 1,100 1,100 0
Sold vacation 900 900 936 (36)
Christmas bonus 100 100 108 ®)
College pay 300 300 280 20
Dental insurance 300 300 273 27
Social security taxes 3,900 3,900 3,762 138
Health insurance 4,800 4,800 4,733 67
Retirement expense 8,500 8,500 8,532 (32)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -32-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted: Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
Public safety - (Continued)
Safety program - (Continued)
Life/disability expense $ 600 $ 600 $ 618 § (18)
Clothing allowance 400 400 350 50
Hazard Comm-MSDS 500 500 428 72
Telephone expense 800 800 936 (136)
Training and travel 1,000 1,000 2,081 (1,081)
Office supplies 0 0 165 (165)
Wellness center operations 0 8,500 9,851 (1,351)
Safety supplies 1,000 1,000 436 564
Gasoline and oil 1,200 1,200 0 1,200
TML driver safety grant 0 5,000 2,616 2,384
TML safety grant 2,000 2,000 0 2,000
Insurance - vehicles 300 300 210 90
Insurance - general liability 300 200 190 10
Worker's comp 200 200 0 200
Professional liability 300 300 0 300
Miscellaneous 500 500 14 486
Incentive program 5,000 5,000 2,149 2,851
Total safety program $ 82,700 § 96,100 $ 88,697 § 7,403
Total public safety $§ 16,156,700 § 16,171,788 $ 15934366 § 237,422
Public works:
Operations division:
Salaries $ 760,500 $ 721,100 $ 715370 § 5,730
Overtime wages 10,000 13,000 13,511 (511)
Part time wages 39,500 39,500 36,986 2,514
Supplemental pay 700 700 628 72
Service awards 800 500 450 50
Longevity 10,600 10,600 10,842 (242)
Sold vacations 6,000 6,500 7,862 (1,362)
Christmas bonus 2,400 2,300 2,274 26
College pay 200 200 125 75
Dental insurance 11,300 11,300 10,797 503
Social security tax 63,900 60,900 57,200 3,700
Health insurance 164,200 157,600 152,309 5,291
Retirement 132,800 127,300 124,975 2,325
Life and disability insurance 9,900 9,900 9,254 646
Unemployment compensation 0 1,000 905 95
Worker's compensation claims 500 500 933 (433)
Pre-employment drug testing 500 500 335 165
Safety shoes 2,000 2,000 1,492 508
Postage 1,800 800 716 84
Printing 200 200 81 119
Subscriptions and memberships 400 400 373 27

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -33-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
Public works - (Continued)
Operations division - (Continued)
Advertising $ 200 § 200 $ 167 § 33
Utilities 38,000 40,000 34,473 5,527
Telephone 24,000 24,000 21,279 2,721
Surveys 3,000 1,100 22 1,078
Small equipment maintenance - signs 1,700 1,300 156 1,144
Building maintenance 9,000 15,000 14,477 523
Travel and training 3,000 1,300 824 476
Pest control 1,200 1,200 875 325
Office expenditures and paper 7,000 5,500 3,312 2,188
Operating supplies 4,000 3,500 2,308 1,192
Safety supplies 1,500 1,500 1,496 4
Janitorial supplies 1,500 1,500 1,005 495
Uniforms 9,000 9,000 9,416 (416)
Educational supplies 3,000 0 0 0
Gasoline and oil 84,000 100,000 102,867 (2,867)
Repairs and parts 175,000 200,000 218,589 (18,589)
Sign shop supplies 2,800 2,800 1,677 1,123
Sign parts and supplies 40,000 36,200 26,917 9,283
Major safety markings 75,000 75,000 73 74,927
Thermoplastic contract 7,500 24,500 16,967 7,533
Paving and materials 225,000 285,000 244,436 40,564
Insurance - building and contents 6,600 ' 6,600 4,387 2,213
Insurance - vehicle and equipment 11,200 11,500 11,440 60
Insurance - general liability 11,800 9,200 9,190 10
Insurance - workers compensation 31,000 31,000 25,878 5,122
Miscellaneous 500 500 125 375
Incentive program 4,000 1,700 1,688 12
Small equipment 3,000 5,800 5,567 233
Small equipment - signs 1,800 1,800 2,253 (453)
Total operations division $ 2003500 $ 2,063,500 $ 1909282 § 154,218
Engineering :
Salaries $ 348,300 $ 299,600 §$ 298,693 § 907
Overtime wages 2,000 800 701 99
Service awards 200 200 150 50
Longevity 2,400 2,600 2,550 50
Sold vacations 2,400 3,900 3,889 11
Christmas bonus 800 800 758 42
Dental insurance 2,700 2,900 2,625 275
Social Security taxes 27,400 23,400 22,008 1,392
Health insurance 37,800 39,300 38,294 1,006
Retirement 59,700 52,300 51,232 1,068
Life and disability insurance 4,500 4,500 3,788 712
Unemployment compensation 0 9,600 6,090 3,510
Education reimbursement 0 1,500 1,348 152

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -34-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)

Public works - (Continued)

Engineering - (Continued)
Worker's compensation claims $ 200 $ 200 $ 0 $ 200
Clothing allowance and shoes 1,700 1,700 1,238 462
Postage 200 200 173 27
Printing 100 100 0 100
Subscriptions and memberships 2,700 2,700 1,180 1,520
Advertising 200 200 0 200
Utilities 0 0 11 (11)
Telephone 10,000 10,000 9,524 476
Vehicle maintenance 5,000 5,000 3,807 1,193
Office equipment maintenance 1,000 1,000 478 522
Travel and training 3,000 3,000 654 2,346
Office expenditures 4,000 4,000 3,790 210
Operating supplies 200 200 288 (88)
Janitorial 500 500 218 282
Uniforms 700 800 584 216
Gasoline and oil 4,000 4,000 4,947 947)
Insurance - building and contents 300 300 66 234
Insurance - vehicle and equipment 900 1,000 950 50
Insurance - general liability 1,200 1,300 1,226 74
Insurance - workers compensation 7,000 7,000 4,658 2,342
Miscellaneous 500 400 269 131
Equipment 1,000 1,000 845 155

Total engineering $ 532,600 $ 486,000 $ 467,032 $ 18,968

Street lighting and signals:
Street lighting $ 700,000 $ 720,000 $ 670,792 § 49,208
Telephone 2,500 2,500 2,396 104
Traffic light utility service 42,000 48,500 45,243 3,257
Traffic light repair maintenance 196,000 232,000 230,095 1,905
Traffic signal supplies 1,700 0 55 (55)
Signalization expenses 3,000 0 0 0
Small equipment 1,400 1,400 949 451
Total street lighting and signals $ 946,600 $ 1,004,400 $ 949530 $ 54,870

Landscaping maintenance:
Salaries $ 221,600 $ 221,600 $ 217,933 § 3,667
Overtime wages 900 900 1,152 (252)
Part-time 0 0 1,980 (1,980)
Service awards 300 300 325 (25)
Longevity 2,600 2,600 2,600 0
Sold vacations 1,900 1,900 1,055 845
Christmas bonus 800 800 758 42
Dental insurance 2,600 2,600 2,612 (12)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -35-



Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)

Public works - (Continued)

Landscaping maintenance - (Continued)

Social security taxes

Health Insurance

Retirement

Life and disability insurance
Worker's compensation claims
Pre-employment testing

Postage

Printing

Subscriptions and memberships
Advertising

Utilities

Telephone

Vehicle maintenance

Equipment repairs

Travel and training

Work sessions

Other contracted services

Office expenditures

Botanical supplies

Uniforms

Trees

Donations - memorial tree fund
Gasoline and oil

Insurance - building and contents
Insurance - vehicle and equipment
Insurance - general liability
Insurance - workers compensation
Miscellaneous

Small equipment

Total landscaping maintenance

FEMA Storm Damage

Tornado storm damage
Total FEMA storm damage
Total public works

Health and welfare:

Animal Control:
Salaries
Overtime wages
Service awards
Longevity

CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE

GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
17,700 17,700 16251 § 1,449
37,100 37,100 36,532 568
44,800 44,800 35,374 9,426
2,800 2,800 3,616 (816)
500 500 752 (252)
100 100 230 (130)
100 100 162 62)
400 400 0 400
700 700 1,530 (830)
200 200 107 93
1,200 1,200 2,941 (1,741)
4,600 4,600 3,770 830
60,000 60,000 56,834 3,166
1,800 1,500 802 698
2,600 2,756 3,731 975)
0 0 830 (830)
300 1,400 1,342 58
800 500 84 416
9,000 8,800 9,477 (677)
3,500 3,500 3,341 159
7,500 7,500 8,152 (652)
0 11,477 7,153 4,324
22,000 21,625 24,507 (2,882)
500 500 0 500
4,000 4,100 4,031 69
1,500 1,600 1,501 99
9,600 9,600 7,074 2,526
200 100 100 0
800 600 589 11
465,000 476,458 459,228 § 17,230
0 500,000 527217 § (27,217)
0 500,000 527217  § (27,217)
3,947,700 4,530,358 4,312,289 § 218,069
274,800 259,800 267,135 § (7,335)
20,400 19,400 14,922 4,478
200 100 100 0
4,000 4,000 4,000 0
-36-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND ‘ (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
Health and welfare - (Continued)
Animal Control - (Continued
Sold vacations $ 700 $ 700 $ 620 § 80
Christmas bonus 1,100 800 758 42
Dental insurance 2,700 2,700 2,428 272
Social Security tax 23,000 22,000 21,126 874
Health insurance 45,800 41,800 43,052 (1,252)
Retirement 41,000 45,600 43,105 2,495
Life and disability insurance 3,200 3,200 3,200 0
Education reimbursement - 0 0 419 (419)
Unemployment compensation 0 0 1,314 (1,314)
Worker's compensation claims 1,000 1,000 0 1,000
Laundry and dry cleaning 4,000 5,000 3,674 1,326
Employee physicals 0 0 105 (105)
Protective immunizations 500 300 121 179
Postage 100 900 523 - 377
Contracted services - vehicles 900 900 747 153
Communications replacement 500 500 105 395
Printing 1,600 1,600 384 1,216
Subscriptions and memberships 800 800 1,127 (327)
Advertising 200 300 331 (€28
Utilities and pager 10,100 10,100 10,691 (591)
Telephone 10,500 10,500 10,541 “n
Adoption and veterinary fees 0 22,000 22,012 (12)
Vehicle maintenance 15,000 15,000 18,497 (3,497)
Copier maintenance 500 600 269 331
Grounds improvement 1,200 1,200 0 1,200
Building maintenance 6,500 6,500 3,974 2,526
Training and travel 1,500 1,500 0 1,500
Landfill 3,000 3,000 2,063 937
Janitorial contract 6,000 6,000 5,910 90
Office supplies and printing 2,500 2,500 2,079 421
OSHA safety supplies 500 500 159 341
Janitorial supplies 6,000 6,000 6,032 (32)
Uniforms and safety shoes 4,500 4,500 1,104 3,396
Ammunition 1,000 1,000 437 563
Gasoline and oil 20,000 19,780 21,148 (1,368)
Euthanasia and supplies 6,000 6,000 3,156 2,844
Pet food 5,500 5,500 4,421 1,079
Donations - cages and supplies 0 3,192 2,088 1,104
Insurance - building and contents 300 300 294 6
Insurance - vehicles and equipment 1,200 1,200 1,119 81

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -37-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts ~ Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
Health and welfare - (Continued)
Animal Control - (Continued

Insurance - general liability $ 1,200 $ 1,300 $ 1,240 $ 60
Insurance - workers compensation 7,600 7,600 5,600 2,000
Miscellaneous 500 500 511 an
Equipment 1,100 1,100 829 271
Total Animal Control $ 538,700 $ 548,772  § 533,470 § 15,302

Total health and welfare $ 538,700 $ 548,772  $ 533470 § 15,302

Culture and recreation:
College Hill Recreation Center:

Salaries $ 107,400 $ 107,400 $ 98,751 § 8,649
Overtime wages 1,000 1,000 194 806
Part time wages . ' 39,000 39,000 51,396 (12,396)
Service awards 300 300 250 " 50
Longevity 2,000 2,000 : 2,000 0
Sold vacations 2,000 2,000 1,180 820
Christmas bonus 500 500 325 175
Dental insurance 900 900 908 ®)
Social security tax 11,700 11,700 10,942 758
Health insurance 14,200 14,200 16,161 (1,961)
Retirement 21,400 21,400 17,062 4,338
Life and disability insurance . 1,300 1,300 1,253 47
Unemployment compensation 500 500 296 204
Education reimbursement 400 400 0 400
Worker's compensation claims 200 200 1,000 (800)
Utilities - 47,300 47,300 42,738 4,562
Telephone 3,300 3,300 4,791 (1,491)
Building maintenance 18,700 19,300 18,574 726
Team competition and trips 2,600 2,600 2,229 371
Office expenditures and paper 1,400 1,400 1,559 (159)
Janitorial supplies 1,500 1,500 2,686 (1,186)
Gate concession supplies 3,500 3,500 5,370 (1,870)
Gasoline 300 300 ' 0 300
Pool 4,000 4,000 5,887 (1,887)
Athletic supplies _ 3,000 3,000 2,353 647
Program development 6,000 6,000 5,711 289
Insurance - building and contents 3,200 3,200 4,521 (1,321)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -38-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
Culture and recreation - (Continued)
College Hill Recreation Center - (Continued)
Insurance - general liability $ 1,500 $ 1,100 $ 1,075 § 25
Insurance - workers compensation 4,600 4,600 3,780 820
Program 5,000 15,000 15,777 (777)
Miscellaneous 500 . 500 560 (60)
BCCSA activities 15,000 15,000 15,000 0
Team donations 1,500 1,500 900 600
Youth achievement program 5,300 5,300 4,569 731
Swim team 2,000 2,000 1,996 4
Furniture 0 4,400 4,696 (296)
Total College Hill Recreation Center $ 333,000 $ 347,600 $ 346,490 $ 1,110
Parks and recreation:
Salaries $ 341,000 $ 341,000 § 321,732 § 19,268
Overtime wages 3,500 3,500 1,577 1,923
Part time wages 19,500 19,500 - 17,734 1,766
Service awards 200 200 150 50
Longevity 2,900 3,200 3,150 50
Sold vacation 2,600 2,600 1,431 1,169
Christmas bonus 900 900 975 (75)
College pay 200 200 125 75
Dental insurance 4,100 4,100 4,026 74
Social security tax 28,700 28,700 25,448 3,252
Health insurance 60,300 60,300 64,978 (4,678)
Retirement 58,700 58,700 54,855 3,845
Life and disability insurance 4,100 4,100 2,826 1,274
Unemployment compensation 500 500 1,532 (1,032)
Worker's compensation claims 900 900 0 900
Laundry and dry cleaning 500 500 470 30
Pre-employment testing 0 0 70 (70)
Postage 200 200 143 57
Membership 300 300 265 35
Advertising 0 0 67 67
Utilities 7,300 7,300 8,572 (1,272)
Telephone 9,000 9,000 7,454 1,546
Vehicle maintenance 30,000 30,000 49,713 (19,713)
Equipment and repairs 5,500 3,000 1,589 1,411
Grounds maintenance 23,000 22,400 13,723 : 8,677
Fletcher building 9,000 11,500 12,236 (736)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -39-



CITY OF CLEVELAND, TENNESSEE

GENERAL FUND (Continued)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures - (Continued)
Current - (Continued)
Culture and recreation - (Continued)
Parks and recreation - (Continued)
Car allowance $ 4200 $ 4200 § 4200 $ 0
Training and travel 3,000 3,600 3,563 37
Office expenditures 1,300 1,300 1,257 43
Uniforms 3,500 2,600 2,341 259
Gasoline and oil 20,000 20,000 32,554 (12,554)
Insurance - building and contents 2,800 3,700 3,610 90
Insurance - vehicles and equipment 3,000 3,400 3,356 44
Insurance - general liability 2,900 2,200 2,153 47
Insurance - worker's compensation 9,300 9,300 7,432 1,868
Miscellaneous 500 500 468 32
Old timers banquet 2,500 2,500 2,138 362
Small equipment 1,000 1,000 398 602
Total parks and recreation $ 666,900 § 666,900 $ 658,311 § 8,589
Cleveland Community Center:

Salaries . $ 136,500 $ 136,500 $ 134,646 $ 1,854
Part time wages 36,900 36,900 40,779 (3,879)
Overtime wages 0 0 64 (64)
Longevity 4,100 4,100 4,050 50
Sold vacations 1,600 1,600 1,610 (10)
Christmas bonus 500 500 433 67
Dental insurance 1,300 1,300 1,307 @)
Social security tax 13,900 13,900 13,331 569
Health insurance 23,000 23,000 23,211 211)
Retirement 27,800 27,800 22,533 5,267
Life and disability insurance 1,700 1,700 1,619 81
Unemployment compensation 0 0 2,441 (2,441)
Worker's compensation claims _ 100 100 0 100
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